
 

 

FAIRFIELD CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
FAIRFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

5350 PLEASANT AVENUE 
FAIRFIELD, OHIO  45014 

 

Tuesday, May 27, 2014        7:00 PM 
 

 

MAYOR………………………………….STEVE MILLER    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…CHAD OBERSON 

COUNCILMEMBER 1ST WARD……….ADAM B. JONES    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…MIKE SNYDER 

COUNCILMEMBER 2ND WARD………MARTY JUDD    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…BILL WOESTE 

COUNCILMEMBER 3RD WARD………DEBBIE PENNINGTON   CITY MANAGER………………….ARTHUR E. PIZZANO 

COUNCILMEMBER 4TH WARD………TERRY SENGER    CLERK OF COUNCIL…………….ALISHA WILSON 

LAW DIRECTOR………………….JOHN H. CLEMMONS 
 
Guidelines for Citizen Comments: Thank you for your interest and participation in city government.  Fairfield City Council’s Guidelines for Citizen 

Comments describe the rules for addressing City Council. The guidelines are posted in the Council Chambers. 

 

ADA Notice:  The City of Fairfield is pleased to provide accommodations to disabled individuals or groups and encourage full participation in city 

government.  Should special accommodations be required, please contact the Clerk of Council at 867-5383 at least 48 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 

2. Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Roll Call 

 

4. Agenda Modifications 

 

5. Executive Session Requests 

 

6. Public Hearing(s) 

 

7. Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 

 

a) Lupus Awareness Proclamation 

b) Post Office Beautification Proclamation 

c) Craig Moore, Police Officer – Oath of Office 

 

8. Mayor/Council Reports 

 

9. Approval of Minutes 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of  May 12, 2014 

 

10. OLD BUSINESS  
 

(A)  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman, Bill Woeste, Member 

 

(1)  Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Mount Pleasant Blacktopping for the 

2014 Asphalt Paving and Resurfacing Project. 

 

 Ordinance – Third Reading 

 Motion – Adoption 

 

(2)  Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Southeastern Equipment 

Company, Inc. for the purchase of a Case 721F Loader. 

 

 Ordinance – Second Reading 



Page 2  

Agenda 

Regular Meeting 

May 27, 2014 

 

 

(3)  Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Adleta Construction for the 

construction of the Ross Road/ Kenn Road Improvement project. 

 

 Ordinance – Second Reading 

 

(B)          PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 

Marty Judd, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 

(1)  Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Synagro Central, LLC. for disposal of  

biosolid materials from the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 

 Ordinance – Second Reading 

 

(C) PARKS, RECREATION AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

Debbie Pennington, Chairman; Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Marty Judd, Member 

 

(1)  Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Century Equipment, Incorporated 

for the purchase of one (1) Toro Groundsmaster 5910 Mower. 

 

 Ordinance –Second Reading 

 

11.  NEW BUSINESS 

 

(A)  COMMUNITY & PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE 

Mike Snyder, Chairman; Bill Woeste, Vice Chairman, Debbie Pennington, Member 

 

(1) Simple Motion: Appointment of Carolyn Wright, of Cincinnati Insurance Companies, as Fairfield’s 

representative on the Butler County Board of Health. 

 

 (B) PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

Adam Jones, Chairman; Marty Judd, Vice Chairman, Terry Senger, Member 

 

(1) Simple Motion: Motion to request hearing on liquor permit application in the name of Christopher M. Griffith 

dba Darkroom Café, 1195 Hicks Boulevard, Fairfield, OH 45014 (Permit Classes: D5). 

 

(2) Simple Motion: Motion to approve liquor permit application in the name of Swright Productions LLC DBA 

Blue Note Lighthouse Café (Permit Classes: D1, D2, D3, D3A and D6). 

 

(3) Resolution to declare three (3) Styker Model 6252 Stair Chairs as surplus and authorize their transfer to the 

Fairfield City School District and declaring an emergency. 

 

 Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 

 Resolution – First Reading 

 Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 

 Motion – Adoption 

 

(C) PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 

Marty Judd, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 

(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with National Water Services, LLC for 

cleaning and rehabilitating raw water production wells number 6 and 7  in the water division and declaring an 

emergency. 

 

 Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 



Page 3  

Agenda 

Regular Meeting 

May 27, 2014 

 

 

 Resolution – First Reading 

 Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 

 Motion – Adoption 

 

(2) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Chemco Systems, L.P. to purchase one 

Slurry Lime Slaker with Rotary Feeder and Control Panel. 

 

 Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 

 Resolution – First Reading 

 Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 

 Motion – Adoption 

 

 

 (D) PARKS, RECREATION AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

Debbie Pennington, Chairman; Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Marty Judd, Member 

 

(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with J.K. Designs, Inc., DBA National 

Sculpter’s Guild, for an entry feature at the Community Arts Center and declaring an emergency. 

 

 Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 

 Resolution – First Reading 

 Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 

 Motion – Adoption 

 

(E) FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Terry Senger, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Chad Oberson, Member 

 

(1) Ordinance providing for the issuance of not to exceed $1,650,000 of renewal notes by the City of Fairfield, 

Ohio, in anticipation of the issuance of bonds to provide funds to renew bond anticipation notes. 

 

 Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 

 Resolution – First Reading 

 Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 

 Motion – Adoption 

 

(2) Ordinance to authorize an amended Employment Agreement for the City Manager. 

 

 Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 

 Resolution – First Reading 

 Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 

 Motion – Adoption 

 

(3) Contractual Appropriations - $80,000 for cleaning and rehabilitating raw water production wells; $150,000 to 

purchase one (1) Slurry Lime Slaker; $67,500 for a bronze sculpture. 

 

 Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 

 Ordinance – First Reading 

 Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 

 Motion – Adoption 

 

(4) Non-Contractual Appropriations - $49,300 for upgrades and maintenance at the Community Arts Center; 

$4,125 for upgrades of the Fairfield Greens South Trace irrigation system; $5,000 for traffic signal system 

assistance; $25,000 to purchase spare parts to support SCADA system; $25,000 for engineering to update the 



Page 4  

Agenda 

Regular Meeting 

May 27, 2014 

 

 

Bio Win Plant model; $45,000 to replace the Aeration Systems Diffusers; $14,000 for a Turblex Blower HMI 

Panel View upgrade. 

 

 Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 

 Ordinance – First Reading 

 Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 

 Motion – Adoption 

 

 

 

12. Meeting Schedule 
 

Monday, June 9 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 

Monday, July 14 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 

Monday, August 11 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 

 

13. Executive Session of Council (if needed) 
 

14. Adjournment 



MINUTES  
 

REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL  
 

MAY 12, 2014  
 
Call to Order  
Mayor Steve Miller called the Regular Meeting of Council to order at 7:00 PM at the Fairfield Municipal 
Building, 5350 Pleasant Avenue. 
 
Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance  
Councilmember Debbie Pennington led in Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Wilson called the roll of Council. Present members were Councilmember Adam Jones, 
Councilmember Marty Judd, Councilmember Debbie Pennington, Councilmember Terry Senger, 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, Councilmember Mike Snyder, and Councilmember Bill Woeste. 
 
Agenda Modifications 
Councilmember Senger, seconded by Councilmember Snyder, moved to substitute the non-contractual 
ordinance for a revised version of the ordinance. City Manager Pizzano explained that the $30,000 
appropriation for work at the Community Arts Center was pulled pending more research on the item. 
Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Executive Session Requests 
Councilmember Snyder, seconded by Councilmember Pennington, moved for Executive Session for the 
purpose of discussing employment of personnel. Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Public Hearing(s)  
 
Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 
Keith Davis of 1850 Vernon Pl. addressed council regarding his thoughts on energy aggregation and 
abandoned property maintenance. Mayor Miller referred both issues to Development Services Director 
Tim Bachman for further research and thanked Mr. Davis for bringing the topics to council. 
 
Mayor/Council Reports 
Councilmember Pennington reported on the Village Green concert series. The series begins May 22 and 
goes through the end of August. More information is online. This month's concert starts at 6:30 pm, and 
all other concerts will begin at 7:00 pm. 
 
Councilmember Senger reported on the Hero's Ride. The ride will take place on August 23.  
 
Councilmember Snyder congratulated and thanked the citizens of the City of Fairfield for passing the 
school levy. Mercy Health is having an event this Wednesday for cancer survivors from 6:30 pm to 8:00 
pm. More information is available on their website. 
 
Councilmember Woeste introduced Kurt Radel to speak about the Business Spotlight Program. He has 
been working with Development Services to showcase businesses. The program will involve bringing 
different business leaders to city council meetings periodically to talk about their respective businesses.  
 



Mayor Miller read a letter commending the Fairfield Police Department for their assistance to the King 
County Washington Police Department and Prosecutor's office on a recent murder case. Mayor Miller 
also thanked the Police Department for assisting on the case. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Regular Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2014  

 The Regular Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2014 were approved as written 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE  
Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman, Bill Woeste, Member 

 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Mount Pleasant Blacktopping for 
the 2014 Asphalt Paving and Resurfacing Project.  

 
Legislative Action: Councilmember Oberson presented the second reading of this ordinance.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

COMMUNITY & PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE  
Mike Snyder, Chairman; Bill Woeste, Vice Chairman, Debbie Pennington, Member 

 

Simple Motion: Motion to approve 2014 Summer Meeting Schedule for City Council Meetings.  

 
Councilmember Snyder, seconded by Councilmember Pennington, moved to approve the 2014 Summer 
Meeting Schedule. Motion carried 7-0. SIMPLE MOTION 11-14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

Simple Motion: Motion to appoint Lynda McGuire as Acting Clerk of Council on an as-needed basis.  

 
Councilmember Snyder, seconded by Councilmember Woeste, moved to approve Lynda McGuire as 
Acting Clerk of Council on an as-needed basis. Motion carried 7-0. SIMPLE MOTION 12-14. APPROVED 7-
0. 
 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE  
Marty Judd, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Synagro Central, LLC. for disposal 
of biosolid materials from the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

 
Councilmember Marty Judd, seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to read one ordinance by 
title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the city enter into a contract with Synagro Centeral, 
LLC. for disposal of biosolid materials from the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Judd presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 

PARKS, RECREATION AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  
Debbie Pennington, Chairman; Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Marty Judd, Member 



 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Century Equipment, 
Incorporated for the purchase of one (1) Toro Groundsmaster 5910 Mower.  

 
Councilmember Debbie Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Marty Judd moved to read one 
ordinance by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the city to enter into an agreement with Century 
Equipment, Incorporated to purchase one mower. Legislative Action: Councilmember Pennington 
presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE  
Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman, Bill Woeste, Member 

 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Terry Senger moved to read seven 
ordinances and one resolution by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 

Ordinance to declare sixteen (16) city motor vehicles, a generator and a tractor as surplus and authorize 
the City Manager to sell the motor vehicles, generator and tractor on govdeals.com.  

 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the declaration and sale of surplus vehicles and 
equipment. Legislative Action: Councilmember Oberson presented the first reading of this ordinance.  
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to adopt . Motion 
Carried 7-0. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 42-14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

Resolution to allow the existing landscaping and parking area located at 6330 Pleasant Avenue 
(Ameristop Retail Center) to remain within the existing right-of-way for the project known as Pleasant 
Avenue Improvements and declaring an emergency.  

 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the city allow the existing landscaping and parking 
area located at 6330 Pleasant Ave. to remain within existing right of way for Pleasant Avenue 
Improvements. Legislative Action: Councilmember Oberson presented the first reading of this 
resolution. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to suspend the 
rules requiring three (3) readings of this resolution. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to adopt . Motion 
Carried 7-0. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 7-14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Fuller Ford for the purchase of 



four (4) 4X4 trucks, two (2) dump trucks and one (1) Ford Police Interceptor Vehicle.  

 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the city enter into an agreement with Fuller Ford to 
purchase various vehicles. Legislative Action: Councilmember Oberson presented the first reading of this 
resolution. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Marty Judd moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Marty Judd moved to adopt . Motion 
Carried 7-0. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 43-14. APPROVED 7-0.  
 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Lebanon Ford for the 
purchase of five (5) Ford Police Interceptor Vehicles and one (1) Ford Fusion and declaring an 
emergency.  

 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the city enter into an agreement with Lebanon Ford 
to purchase various vehicles. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Mike Snyder moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to adopt . 
Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 44-14. APPROVED 7-0.  
 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Southeastern Equipment 
Company, Inc. for the purchase of a Case 721F Loader.  

 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the city enter into an agreement with Southeastern 
Equipment Company, Inc. to purchase a Case Loader. Legislative Action: Councilmember Oberson 
presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Deere and Company and 
MoTrim Inc. for the purchase of a John Deere 5085M 4X4 Utility Tractor with MoTrim Mower 
Attachments.  

 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the city enter into an agreement with Deere and 
Company and MoTrim Inc. to purchase a utility tractor with attachments. Councilmember Oberson 
presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to adopt . 
Motion Carried 7-0. 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 45-14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Rush Truck Centers for the 
purchase of a single axle dump truck and declaring an emergency.  

 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the city enter into an agreement with Rush Truck 
Centers to purchase a dump truck. Legislative Action: Councilmember Oberson presented the first 
reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to adopt . Motion 
Carried 7-0. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 46-14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Adleta Construction for the 
construction of the Ross Road/ Kenn Road Improvement project.  

 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the city enter into an agreement with Adleta 
Construction for construction of the Ross Rd/Kenn Rd Improvement project. Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Oberson presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE  
Terry Senger, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Chad Oberson, Member 

 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to read two (2) 
ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 

Contractual Appropriations - $88,100 for Toro Groundsmaster 5910 mower; $243,421 for vehicles and 
related equipment; $227,847 for vehicles and related quipment; $168,540 for Case 721F Loader; 
$83,857 for John Deere 5085M 4X4 Utility Tractor with MoTrim Mower Attachments; $84,573 for Single 
Axle Dump Truck; $210,000 for Ross Road/Kenn Road Improvements.  

 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the appropriations related to the contracts previously 
discussed during this meeting. Legislative Action: Councilmember Senger presented the first reading of 
this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Adam Jones moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to adopt . Motion 
Carried 7-0. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 47-14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

Non-Contractual Appropriations - $13,682 for Woods 15’ Batwing Mower Deck (Parks); $18,289 for 10 



Variable Frequency Drives (Justice Center); $9,771 for software and firmware for Johnson Controls 
Building Automation Software; $45,700 for shingled roof at Fire Station 32 (Dixie Hwy) and 
miscellaneous repairs at all firehouses (Fire); $11,365 for Kimco Salt Hopper (Street Department); 
$30,000 for balcony and terrace improvements at the Community Arts Center; $25,000 for Power 
Assisted Stair Chairs (Fire); $25,000 for Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Test Equipment (Fire); 
$20,900 for 3 printers (Finance); $4,000 for software for city business; $25,462 for Bobcat Utility Vehicle 
with snow blower (Water); $17,804 for sanitary sewer piping (Wastewater).  

 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended the appropriations for several non-contractual items. 
He also mentioned again that the $30,000 balcony and terrace improvement was removed from the 
agenda. Legislative Action: Councilmember Senger presented the first reading of this ordinance.  
 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to suspend the 
rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Councilmember Terry Senger, seconded by Councilmember Mike Snyder moved to adopt . Motion 
Carried 7-0. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 48-14. APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Meeting Schedule 
Clerk Wilson read the following meeting schedule. 
 

 Tuesday, May 27 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  

 Monday, June 9 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  

 Monday, July 14 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
 
Executive Session of Council (if needed) 
Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:35 pm.  
 
Adjournment 
Executive Session adjourned at 9:50 pm. 
 
ATTEST:  

_____________________________ 
Clerk of Council  

_____________________________ 
Mayor's Approval 

 

Date Approved___________________________  

 












































































































































































































































































































































	Regular Agenda for May 27, 2014
	Regular Meeting Minutes May 12, 2014
	Old Business
	2014 Asphalt Paving
	Case Loader
	Ross Rd/Kenn Rd Construction
	Synagro contract
	Groundsmaster mower
	New Business	
	Carolyn Wright Appointment
	Darkroom Cafe Liquor Permit
	Lighthouse Cafe Liquor Permit
	Styker Stair Chair Transfer
	National Water Services Contract
	Entry Feature CAC
	Slurry Lime Slaker
	Bond Anticipation Notes
	City Manager Employment Agreement
	Contractual Appropriations
	Non-Contractual Appropriations

